
MEETING AGENDA OF THE 
MOUNTAIN BROOK CITY COUNCIL 

CITY HALL COUNCIL CHAMBER (ROOM AlOS) 
56 CHURCH STREET, MOUNTAIN BROOK, AL 35213 

FEBRUARY 24,2020,7:00 P.M. 

Derek Chen, Field Representative for Bradley Byrne, candidate for U.S. Representative. 

"Go Blue" day for Colorectal Cancer, proclaimed March 6,2020 in the City of Mountain Brook, 
Alabama. 

The week of April 19-26,2020 proclaimed Arbor Week in the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama. 

Consideration: Resolution honoring Gloria Repolesk, of the Emmet O'Neal Library, for her 
service on the 2020 Caldecott Medal Selection Committee. 

Approval of the minutes of the February 10,2020, regular meeting of the Mountain Brook City 
Council. 

Consideration: Resolution authorizing the installation of a street light in the vicinity of 3008 
North Woodridge Road. 

Consideration: Resolution awarding bid for the Dunbarton Sidewalk Project to Southeastern 
Sealcoating and authorizing the execution of a contract for the same. 

Announcement: The next regular meeting of the City Council is March 9,2020, at 7:00 p.m. in 
the Council Chamber of City Hall located at 56 Church Street, Mountain Brook, AL 35213. 

Comments from residents. 

10. Adjourn. 



Colorectal Cancer Awareness Month Proclamation 

WHEREAS, colorectal cancer is the second most common cause of cancer deaths for men and 
women in Alabama and the lifetime risk of being diagnosed with cancer of the colon or rectum is 4.4 
percent for men and 4.1 percent for women in the United States; 

WHEREAS, the vast majority of colon cancer deaths can be prevented through proper screening 
and early detection and if 80 percent of adults were screened for colon cancer, 203,000 fewer people will .- 
die by 2030; . - 

WHEREAS, the survival rate of individuals who have colorectal cancer is 90 percent when 
detected in the early stages versus only a 10 percent survival rate when colorectal cancer is diagnosed 
after it has spread to other organs; 

WHEREAS, the American Cancer Society estimates 2,460 cases of colorectal cancer will be 
diagnosed in Alabama this year and 960 people will die from the disease. and deaths from colorectal 
ca&r occur disproportion~tely among tliosd who are underserved or underinsured; 

WHEREAS, when detected early the five-year survival rates for wlon cancer is 90%; however, 
, only 39% of colorectal cancers are diagnosed at this stage, mostly due to low rates of screening; 

WHEREAS, greater awareness of colon cancer and the means to prevent it could save the lives 
hundreds of Alabamians every year because colorectal cancer is preventable, treatable, and beatable in 
most cases; and 

WHEREAS, observing a "Go Blue Day" for Colorectal Cancer Awareness would provide a 
special opportunity to offer education on the importance of early detection and screening. 

NOW, THEREFORE, I, Stewart Welch III, Mayor of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, 
recognize the importance of colorectal screenings and hereby proclaim March 2019, as 

5. ., 
. .,., 

"COLORECTAL CANCER AWARENESS MONTH" 
' ~ . ' 3;. 

'; throughout the City and encourage all residents of Mountain Brook who are 45 and over to get a 
' 

.- colorectal screening and recognize March 6,2020 as "Go Blue Dayn for Colorectal Cancer Awareness in 
Mouptain Brook, Alabama. 
: uri3m- .- ..:w .,*;y: - .. <...*& 

.~ 2.. : 

. . li ,: 
~ .: IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and 

~. . .  , .*  I caused the Seal of the City of Mountain Brook to be a£lixed the 
, 

. . .. .. - 
. . . , . . . 

., . . . . . .  . . .. . 
.. 

.:. .._ ~ i ,  
, .. ~ , .  - 

. . . 
: .~ ,'r? - ..., >., . . . , ..., . . .  . ..5j , . ,, 

L c 
. ,  . 
>, :.'.j. . * 



CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK 

56 Church Street 
Mountain Brook, Alabama 35213 
Telephone: 205.802.3800 
Facsimile: 205.879.6913 
www.mtnbrook.org 

ARBOR WEEK PROCLAMATION 

Whereas, in 1872, J. Sterling Morton proposed to the Nebraska Board of 
Agriculture that a special day be set aside for the planting of trees, and 

Whereas, this holiday, called Arbor Day, was first observed with the planting of more 
than a million trees in Nebraska, and 

Whereas, Arbor Day is now observed throughout the nation and the world, and 

Whereas, trees can reduce the erosion of our precious topsoil by wind and 
water, cut heating and cooling costs, moderate the temperature, clean the air, produce life- 
giving oxygen, and provide habitat for wildlife, and 

Whereas, trees are a renewable resource giving us paper, wood for our homes, fuel for 
our fires and countless other wood products, and 

Whereas, trees in our city increase property values, enhance the economic vitality of 
business areas, and beautify our community, and 

Now, Therefore, 1, Stewart H. Welch 111, Mayor of the City of Mountain Brook, do 
hereby proclaim April 19 through April 26,2020, as 

ARBOR WEEK 

in the City of Mountain Brook, and I urge all residents to celebrate the occasion and to support 
efforts to protect our trees and woodlands, and 

Further, 1 urge all residents to plant trees to gladden the heart and promote the well- 
being of this and future generations. 

Given under my hand and the City of Mountain Brook, 
Alabama, on this 24th day of February, in the year of 
our Lord, 2020, and of the Independence of the United 
States of America. 244th. 

Stewart H. Welch 111, Mayor 



WHEREAS, Gloria Repolesk leads the Emmet O'Neal Library Children's Department; 

WHEREAS, Gloria is widely respected as an advocate for library service to children in 
Mountain Brook; 

WHEREAS, Gloria's peers have demonstrated this respect by electing her to several 
leadership roles in the Alabama Library Association and even in the American Library 
Association's Association for Library Service to Children; 

WHEREAS, Gloria was recently selected as a one of 15 librarians in the United States to 
serve on the 2020 Caldecott Medal Selection Committee; 

WHEREAS, Gloria read and evaluated over 600 children's books as possible nominees 
for the Caldecott Medal; 

WHEREAS, Gloria deliberated for over 22 hours with the Caldecott Medal Selection 
Committee before finally choosing, The Undefeated, an ode to great black Americans 
illustrated by Kadir Nelson and written by Kwame Alexander as the 2020 Caldecott Medal 
Winner; 

WHEREAS, Gloria shared her experiences as a member of the Caldecott Medal Winner 
with the students at ~herokee Bend Elementary who conduct their own Caldecott Medal 
selection each year; now, therefore be it 

RESOLVED, that the Ernrnet O'Neal Library Board and the Mountain Brook City 
Council recognize that Gloria Repolesk demonstrates an exemplary commitment to promoting 
children's literature and her service on the Caldecott Medal Selection Committee is an honor 
for our library and our community. 

Adopted by the Ernrnet O'Neal Library Board on February 18, 2020 and by the Mountain 
Brook City Council on February 24,2020 

Lindsy Gardner Susan Elliott Stewart Welch 

Director President Mayor 
Emmet O'Neal Library Ernmet O'Neal Library Board City of Mountain Brook 



MINUTE BOOK 91 

MOUNTAIN BROOK CITY COUNCIL 
PRE-MEETING DISCUSSION 

FEBRUARY 10,2020 

The City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama met in public session in the Pre-council 
Room (A106) of City Hall at 6:00 p.m. on the 10th day of February, 2020. The Council President called the 
meeting to order and the roll was called with the following results: 

Present: Virginia C. Smith, Council President 
William S. Pritchard 111, Council President Pro Tempore 
Philip E. Black 
Lloyd C. Shelton 
Alice B. Womack 
Stewart Welch 111, Mayor 

Absent: None 

Also present were City Attorneys Steve Stine and Ben Presley, City Manager Sam Gaston and City 
Clerk Steven Boone. 

1. AGENDA 

1. Street light request at 3008 North WoodridgeVirginia Smith and Sam Gaston (The City 
Manager is to mail notices to affected residents and this matter will be reconsidered on February 
24,2020) 

2. Two Village Design Review Committee appointments (Resolution Nos. 220-0 1 8 and 0 19 were 
added to the formal meeting agenda.) 

3. Public Participation and right-of-way acquisition services from Sain Associates for the Hagood 
sidewalk project-Tony Montanaro of Sain Associates (Resolution No. 2020-022 was added to 
the forrt~al meeting agenda.) 

4. Request by The Emmet O'Neal Library to upgrade a part-time position to a full-time position- 
Lindsy Gardner (Resolution No. 2020-020 was added to the formal meeting agenda.) 

5. Beech Circle items 
A. Proposal from Skipper Consultants to study before and after traffic patterns from 

the closure of Beech Circle-Richard Caudle of Skipper Consultants (Resolution No. 2020- 
021 was added to the formal meeting agenda) 

B. Funding and Operating Agreement with Friends of Beech Circle Association-Steve Stine 
(Motion .No. 2020-023 was added to the formal meeting agenda) 

C. Automatic Aid Agreement with the City of Birmingham-Steve Stine (Motion No. 2020-024 
was added to the formal meeting agenda) 

6. Review of the other matters to be considered at the formal (7 p.m.) meeting 

2. EXECUTIVE SESSION AND ADJOURNMENT 

Council President Pro Tempore Pritchard made a motion that the City Council convene in executive 
session to discuss a matter that could lead to litigation. The City Attorney verbally certified that the subject 
matter of the executive session is permissible under the Open Meetings Act. The motion was seconded by 
Council President Smith. There being no further discussion, the vote was called with the following results: 

J:Ulinutes & Agendas\Counci1\2020\202002 10 Minutes-doc February 10,2020 



86 

Ayes: 

MINUTE BOOK 91 

Virginia C. Smith, Council President 
William S. Pritchard 111, Council President Pro Tempore 
Philip E. Black 
Lloyd C. Shelton 
Alice B. Womack 

Nays: None 

Council President Smith thereupon declared that said motion carried by a vote of 5-4 .  She then 
announced that the City Council shall reconvene upon conclusion of the executive session at approximately 7 
p.m. in Room AlOS. The pre-meeting was then adjourned at approximately 6:34 p.m. 

3. CERTIFICATION 

I, Steven Boone, City Clerk of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, certifL the above is a true and 
correct synopsis of the discussion from the work session of the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, 
Alabama held at City Hall, Pre-Council Room (A106) on February 10,2020, and that the meeting was duly 
called and held in all respects in accordance with the laws of the State of Alabama and bylaws of the City and 
that no formal action or votes were conducted at said work session. 

City Clerk 
Approved by City Council February 24,2020 

February 10,2020 



MINUTE BOOK 91 

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR OF THE 
CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK 

FEBRUARY 10,2020 

The City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama and met in public session in the City Hall 
Council Chamber at approximately 7:00 p.m. on the 10th day of February, 2020. The Council President called 
the meeting to order and the roll was called with the following results: 

Present: Virginia C. Smith, Council President 
William S. Pritchard 111, Council President Pro Tempore 
Philip E. Black 
Lloyd C. Shelton 
Alice B. Womack 
Stewart Welch 111, Mayor 

Absent: None 

Also present were City Attorney Steve Stine, City Manager Sam Gaston and City Clerk Steven Boone. 

The Council President stated that a quorum was present and that the meeting was open for the 
transaction of business 

1. RECOGNITION OF GUESTS 

Council President Smith recognized two Boy Scouts in attendance at the City Council meeting. 

2. CHARLES ALEXANDER, CANDIDATE FOR JEFFERSON COUNTY TAX COLLECTOR 

Introduced himself and asked for the support of the governing body and members of the audience. 

3. PRESENTATION OF THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL AND COMPLIANCE AUDIT PRAFW] 
OF THE CITY AS AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2019 (APPENDIX 7) 

Independent auditors Jason Harp and Catherine Canon presented the annual financial and compliance 
audit of the City. Following is a summary of their comments and observations: 

There were no new account pronouncements to be implemented this year 
There were no material audit adjustments proposed 
The audit report/opinion (page 5 of the draft) is unmodified ("clean") 
The financial statements and note disclosures were prepared by the Finance Director and reviewed 
by the auditors for accuracy and conformance with applicable accounting standards 
The government-wide statement of position or balance sheet (page 19) shows: 1) an unfunded 
pension liability of $27.9 million, 2) and OPEB liability of $2.9 million and 3) unrestricted net 
position (similar to retained earnings) of $7.7 million. It is unusual for cities to have a positive 
unrestricted net position due to their generally carrying long-term debt. 
The fund financial statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balance @age 23) 
shows an excess of revenues over expenditures of $925,000 resulting in general fund balance of 
$17 million (representing approximately 177-days of expenses-again a very health indicator of 
financial strength as cities generally strive to maintain a fbnd balance of approximately 90-days of 
expenses) 
Page 57 shows a historical comparison of the City's net pension liability 
Page 44 shows the sensitivity of the net pension liability to changes in the discount rate 
Page 60 shows similar information for the City's OPEB liability 
The discount rate used to determine the total OPEB liability was 3.5% 
As reported in the past, the City should continue monitoring its staffing with respect to 
segregation of duties 

J:Winutes & Agendas\Counci1\2020\202002 10 Minutes.doc February 10,2020 



MINUTE BOOK 91 

Recommends the City begin thinking about succession planning with respect to the Finance 
Director's position 

4. CONSENT AGENDA 

Council President Smith announced that the following matters will be considered at one time on the 
consent agenda provided no one in attendance objects: 

Approval of the minutes of the January 27,2020, regular meeting of the City 
Council 

2020-016 Encourage and applaud the Freshwater Land Trust's efforts to Exhibit 1 
clean up litter in local waterways 

2020-017 Authorize the execution of a contract agreement between the Exhibit 2, 
City and Jefferson County Commission with respect to Appendix 1 
Photogrammetric Mapping and Orthoimagery services 

2020-018 Reappoint Stutts Everett to the Village Design Review Exhibit 3 
Committee, to serve without compensation; the term of which 
will end on February 1,2023 

2020-019 Reappoint Ellen Elsas as a supernumerary to the Village Design Exhibit 4 
Review Committee, to serve without compensation; the term of 
which will end on February 1,2023 

2020-020 Authorize the Ernrnet O'Neal Library Board to make its Exhibit 5, 
Technical Services Children's Processor position full-time to be Appendix 2 
filled at the discretion of the Library Board 

2020-021 Authorize the execution of a professional services agreement Exhibit 6, 
between the City and Skipper Consulting, Inc., with respect to Appendix 3 
traffic engineering services to determine the impact of the 
Beech Circle modifications approved January 27,2020, upon 
the adoption of Ordinance No. 2065 

2020-022 Authorize the execution of a professional services agreement Exhibit 7, 
between the City and Sain Associates, with respect to the Appendix 4 
Hagood Street TAP sidewalk project Supplemental Scope of 
Work (public involvement meeting and right-of-wav legal 
description and sketches) 

2020-023 Authorize the execution of the Funding and Operating 
MOTION Agreement between the City and Friends of Beech Circle with 

respect to the modifications to Beech Circle approved upon the 
adoption of Ordinance No. 2065 on January 27,2020 

Appendix 5 

2020-024 Authorize the execution of the Inter-Jurisdictional Automatic Appendix 6 
MOTION Aid agreement between the City and City of Birmingham Fire 

and Rescue Service with respect to the modifications to Beech 
Circle approved upon the adoption of Ordinance No. 2065 on 
January 27,2020 

Thereupon, the foregoing minutes, resolutions and motions were introduced by Council President 
Smith and a motion for their immediate adoption made by Council member Shelton. The minutes, resolutions 
and motions were then considered by the City Council. Council member Black seconded the motion to adopt 
the foregoing minutes, resolutions and motions. Then, upon the question being put and the roll called, the vote 
was recorded as follows: 

J:Winutes & Agendas\CouncilV020\202002 10 Minutes.doc February 10,2020 



MINUTE BOOK 91 

Ayes: Virginia C. Smith, Council President 
William S. Pritchard 111, Council President Pro Tempore 
Philip E. Black 
Lloyd C. Shelton 
Alice B. Womack 

Nays: None 

Abstained: None 

Council President Smith thereupon declared that said minutes, resolutions (Nos. 2020-0 16 through 
2020-022) and motions (Nos. 2020-023 and 2020-024) were adopted by a vote of 5 - 4  that and as evidence 
thereof she signed the same. 

Council President Smith then invited Sally Larue with the Freshwater Land Trust forward to receive 
Resolution No. 2020-020 from the Mayor. 

5. ANNOUNCEMENTS 

The next regular meeting of the City Council will be February 24,2020, at 7:00 p.m. in the Council 
Chamber of City Hall located at 56 Church Street, Mountain Brook, AL 352 13. 

6. ADJOURNEMENT 

There being no further business or matters for discussion, Council President Smith adjourned the 
meeting at approximately 7:25 p.m. 

5. CERTIFICATION 

I, Steven Boone, City Clerk of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, certify the above is a true and 
correct transcript of the regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama held at 
City Hall, Council Chamber (Room A108) on February 10,2020, and that the meeting was duly called and . 
held in all respects in accordance with the laws of the State of Alabama and bylaws of the City and that a 
quorum was present. 

City Clerk 
Approved by City Council February 24,2020 

EXHIBIT 1 

RESOLUTION NO. 2020-016 

WHEREAS, for over a decade, a number of Greater Birmingham entities have worked together on a 
plan to install in-stream litter collection devices in urban streams. 

WHEREAS, Osprey Initiative, the creator of the "Litter Gitter" device, emerged as a new company, 
and in December 2019, the first Birmingham "Litter Gitter" was installed in Valley Creek thanks to River 
Network, Coca-Cola Foundation, the City of Birmingham, and other partners. 

WHEREAS, to continue the fight against litter in our local waterways, support from community 
partners is critical. We need more "Litter Gitter Getters" and the installation of more devices to combat litter 
effectively. 

$:\Minutes & Agendas\Counci1\2020\202002 10 Minutesdoc February 10,2020 



RESOLUTION NO. 2020-025 

BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, as follows: 

1. That Alabama Power Company is requested to install one (1) 108 watt LED area, 4000K, 
gray - 8,500 to 14,000 lumens street light in the vicinity of 3008 North Woodridge Road as 
more fully described in Exhibit A attached hereto (Lighting Services NESC Lease Agreement 
(Governmental-S)). 

2. That the City Manager is hereby authorized to execute and deliver, or cause to be executed 
and delivered, on behalf of the City such documents, instruments, and agreements that may 
be deemed necessary or appropriate with respect to said street light upgrades/installations. 

3. That the City Clerk is directed to furnish the Alabama Power Company a certified copy of 
this resolution. 

ADOPTED: This 24th day of February, 2020. 

Council President 

APPROVED: This 24th day of February, 2020. 

Mayor 

CERTIFICATION 

I, Steven Boone, City Clerk of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama hereby certify the above to 
be a true and correct copy of a resolution adopted by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook at 
its meeting held on February 24,2020, as same appears in the minutes or record of said meeting. 

City Clerk 

Street Light at 3008 North Woodridge Road 



Lighting Services NESCQ Lease Agreement (Governmental) 
5OY:HE9N C O M M M I  

3008 N Woodridge Rd 

Service Address 

~ ~ i l i ~ ~  ~ d d ~ ~ ~ ~  P.O. BOX 130009, L.. . .- --- . - 
E~~~~ Gastons@rntnbrook.org ~ ~ l #  205-802-3803 Alt Tel 

Tax ID Business Description 

Existing yes ~~u If Yes (and if possible), does Customer want y e s m  ~ ~ i ~ t i ~ ~  ~~~~~~t 36128-68008 Customer? Equipment added to an existing account? For lnformatimalpurpases only 

Project Notes: 110 install light on existing pok near 3008 N Woodridge Rd 

Initial Term 1 36 months I Prepaid Amount $ 0.00 

81 

(81 

191 

1101 

Monthly Total ' 

The Regulated C h w  is subject to change et any time as dictated by the Alabama Public Service Commtssion. The amount shown is 
an estimate basedon the Unmetered OuMoor Lighting (ODLJ rate in effect at Nme ofAgfeementpmposat: achralchages may very. 

Customer agrees to lease Ule Equipment referenced above from Alabama Power Company on the attached terms and conditions and authorizes all 
actions noted above. 

$14.55 

Customer Authorized Signature Date Alabama Power Company Date 

Sign Here Sign He? 
Prinl Print 
Name Name 
Print Print 
TlUe TiUe 

APC Internal Use Only - APC Reference Number (ifapplicable): 1 



TERMS and CONDlTtONS (NESC Government. 

'to. 

Llahtina Euuinrnent Lease. This Lease Agreement (UAgreementw) states the agreed terms and concfiins upon wMeh Abbema Power Company ("APC") will: 
(i) lease to 4CustomeP (identitied on Page 1) the YEqulpment" relerenced on Page 1 tor use at the stated ' S d c e  Address' (the "Pf%mfses"); and UI) provide 
electric service to operate the Equipment The uEquipment" includes a1 poles, bases, wiring, tonduii tixtures, conhb, and reletad hms necesssry to provide 
lighting service thmugh the fisted fbrtrrms. unless exptessly noted o t h m h  in 'P@& Nates.' Customer advrowi@es that reguktosy change during the 
Agmment term may requ£re APC to m e  or replaw same Equipment 

Intent and Tftla. TMs Agreement is not a sab of the Equipment to Customer. Customer expressly acknwrldges that APC retafns We to the Equipment 8 d  
agrees that thls Agreement only gives Customer the right to use the Equipment during the Agreement term, so long as Customer compbs with a! terns and 
conditions. Customer acknowledges that the Equipment, although attached to mal properly, ahveys dl remdn the exdus've persand property of APC and that 
APC may remove the Equipment when Ki Agment  ends. Custumer au!hurlzes AfC, without further consent or action, to file any UCC financing sWement or 
security agreement datfng b the Equipment and agrees that APC may tecofd those documents. APC makes no representation or wananty teoardlng 
treatment of this transaction by the Internal Revenue Service or the status of thls Agreement under any federal or state tar taw; Customer enters into 
thls Agreement in sole miiance upon Custamefs own advisors. 
m. The initial Agreement term is slated on Page 1, catEulated frwn the date of the first monthly biIL After h e  lnltisl term. Utis Agreement 8utomatfcaIly renews on 
a month-tononth basis until terminated by either party by pddhg written wUce of intent to terminate to the other party at least 30 days before h e  des ld  
tamrination date. APC's address fornutite is P.O. BOK 2841, Birmingham. Alabama 35203; Customets mmailing address is noted an Psge 1. 
Pavment APC will hvoice Customer pet Ihe terms stated on Page 1, su@jed to any change tn the ek&c service charge d i i e d  by the Alabama Pubnc service 
CommWon. Customer agrees to pay the amwnt Wiled by the due date (20 days aftsr biff lng date). Applicable taxes fnduded in the Eqtdpmsnt ptice rue subject to 
change at any the. If a haf8nca is outsbtdimg past the due data, Customer agreas to pay the geaW of 1.5% d the unpa# balance or $200 and scimowtedges that 
APC may r q u h  Customer to pay a dem of up to two times the Estimated Monlhly Charge in order to continue If apgdidie, Customer must pnndde a 
copy of its Alabama sales tax exemption 
Premises Activi . Customer gmnls a license and right of access to APC, and its contractors and representatives, to enter the Premises with vehicles and 
equipment M: (I) %@!I and connect the Equipment and, HsppBeble, move  or dlsconrtect edsdng equipment (~IIediv~Iy, the uln8t8(ta110nn); (ii) inspect, 
maintain, test, replace, repair, or remove the Equipment; (00 provide electric sefvfce for the Equipment; or ( i i )  canduct any other Agreement-related 8cWy (itsme 
(iv) coltedively, the UAPC Actlvlty"). Customer wN not cause or pennit any abstrudion that may intetfere with APC's access to the Equipment Customer 
represents that the tndMdual signing this Agreement on its behalf has authority to do MI md that it has express authority from a0 Premises owners (end my other 
party with rights In the Premises) to enter into this Agreement and to authorize the APC Adivity. Customer L solely respnsible for safety of the Premises and 
agrees that APC has no obligation to ensure the safety of the Premises or persons or ptoperty entering onto Customer's Premfses. 
!mEalIadaq. Customer represents that (i) the Pmises' final grade wi vary no more than 6 inches from the grade existing at the tbne of instdkttbn; and (Q if 
apNible and ~equfred for proper lnstdatbn, Prembs property limes wfIl be dearly marked before InstaUstbn. 

A Customer Wotk. If APC, upon Customets request flows Customer to perionn any part of Ute Instaffation (incfudmg trenching) itself or through a third 
party. Customer wanants that the work will meet APC's installation spedk%tions (which APC will provide to Cusbmer and are hcospofated by this 
mterence). Customer is responsible for aft reasonable 8ddiknal costs arising from Customer's nanotrmpllance with APC's spea'fications or lack of timely 
(1.e.. 10 days') n o b  to APC that APCs Instaftatton sctivity can comm%n#. 

8. Undarnraund FaciIitvlOhstructlan Not SuMect to Dla Law. Because APC Mvi ty  may require excavation rwt subject b the Alabama's Underground 
Prevention Legislatian ( A h  W e  55 37-15-1 - 37-19-1 1) (UDlg Lad), Customer must mark any private utQw or factllty (e.g, gasl waterlsmr line; 
irdgatl on facfllty; low voltage datelcommunlcation Ifne) or other undetgroulrd obstruction at the Premtses that Is not subject to the Dig Law. If 
APC causes or incurs dsmage due to Cusbrnats failure to mark a private f8dRy or obstmckn before APC commences instaU8tion, Customer Is 
responsible for dl dam8ges and any resulting delay. 

C. Unforeseen Condition. The estimated charges shown on Page 1 indude no akwance for any subsurface rock, wetiand, undsrgmund stman, burisd 
waste, unsuitabIe son, underground obsWon, archeological arWad, burial ground, threatened or endangered species. harardous substsnw, etc. no? . 
properly marked or identified (aUnforeseen CondHlan?. If APC ancount818 an Unforeseen Condition, APC, In b sob d i i t Ion ,  may sbp sUAPCActnnty 
until Customer either remedies the candftion or agms to reimburse dl APC costs arising from the condillon. Cuslomw h respandble tor aII costs of 
Equipment modKcabn ar change requested by Customer ar didated by an Unforeseen CaMdon or drcumstance outside APC's ~ n h L  

Faul~ment Prataction and Damaqg. After InataIlabn and thmughout this Agresmenl'e term, in the event of any work or digging near the Equipment, Customer (or 
any pemn or entity working on Custontefs behalf) must: (i) provide n o w  and locate requests by caIIhg Alabama 81 1 w 1-800-2928525: and (ii) pmvlde netices 
to other utilities or operators as reqrrired by the Wg Law.. AS between Customer and APC, Customer is responsible for all damages arising from faOure to amply 
wilh 8pp!icabb law or for Equipment damage caused by anyone other than APC (or an APC cdntrsctar or representativek 
Malntenanca. During this Agreemenrs ten, APC will maintain the Equiptent and will bear the cost of routine repair or repkentent Customer must n o w  APC 
of any need for EqIdpment repah by tatling the Business Send- Center at 14884304787. 
Maclaimer: Damaaes. APC makes no covenant, warranty, or representalon of any kind (including wananty of fitness for a particulat purpose or of 
merchantabfnty) rwarding the Equtprnent or any APC Actlvm. Cusbmer dso acknowledges that, ckre to the unique characteristics of the Prem'ks, 
Customets needs, or Equipment dnb, the Equlpment may not tallow IESNA guidettnes. Customer wives any right to consequenttat, spechl, lnditecf twble, 
exemplary, Incidental, punitive, loss of buslness reputation, or lass d use (including toss of revenue, profits, or capital costs) damages in conndon 
with Ute Equipment or thb Agreement, or arising from damage, hfndranco, or delay fnvohrlng the Equlpment or thh Agreement, whether or not 
reasonable, foreseeable, contemplated, or avoidable. 
Indamn&. To the frrIleSt ex!ent aU& by law, Customer agrees to indemn@, refease, M d  harmless, and, at APCs request, dsfend APC and its aftUhtes and 
cunlrscbrs (and their offfcem, dfmaars, employees. rspmtathres. and sgents) bom or sgdnst any lass, elamage, cost, expense, or IWi Qnduding adual 
attorneys' fees rmwmtbly kcurred md dl expenses of invesff gafion and defense) fur any damage or daim for persum! or bodily injury (hcfuding dedh), properly 
damage (indudtng loss of use), monetay damage, a equitable rekf cased by or a m  out of any dsrepressntstion or ad or om-Won of Customer involving this 
Agreement the Equipment, or the Premises. whether or not ceused by w adsing out of the joint. cwrcumrd, or contributory @ut mot sole) mgf@?ftce of APC. 
Oefautt Custamet Is in defeutt if Catumerdoes nut pay the entire ammt owed within 45 days of W I .  APCs w8ivef of any past deb& wfll rwt wive any other 
default. If default occurs. APC, at its U t b n ,  may immediately brmbtete this Agreement, wIlect dl past due amounts (Wudhg late fees) snd dl smounts due fw 
Ure Equipment during the rtwnddng Agreement tenn, remove the Equipmen! frum the Premises and seek any dtter aW8bfe me&. 
Mtemlhneaua. This Agrees~tent contains the partlase entire sgraement relating to the Qurpment and replaces any pdor agreement, written or oral. Onb a written 
amendment Jgned by each party can modify thls Agreement except that either party may update administrative ar canted hformabn (e.g., address, phone. 
webshe) st any time by written ndce to the other party. Customer MI not asslgri, in wtrofe at in part, this M m e n t  or its brsement agm or obtigatfons without 
APC's prior written ~ ~ n t  No asstgnment, whether wfth or without canssnt rehves Customer of its Agmtu t t  obt$ahs. CusCamer must ptovfde advance 
nutfm of a charrge in cantrol of dl, or substantially dl, of Customer's owrrerdtlp or interest in the Pmfses. In thts &martent, 'including' means 'induding, but not 
limited to.' AIabama law governs tfrIe Agreement I f  a wwt rules an Agreement prwfsion unentonweMe to any extent, tita rest of that provisiun end all utttw 
pravisions main effective. , 





RESOLUTION NO. 2020-029 

BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama that 
the City Council hereby recommends that the Alabama Department of Transportation award the 
bid for the Dunbarton sidewalk construction project (No. TAPBH-TA18(93 1)) to Southeastern 
Sealcoating; and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, 
Alabama that the City Council hereby authorizes the execution of such other agreements as may 
be required by the Alabama Department of Transportation for same. 

ADOPTED: This 24th day of February, 2020. 

Council President 

APPROVED: This 24th day of February, 2020. 

Mayor 

CERTIFICATION 

I, Steven Boone, City Clerk of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama hereby certify the 
above to be a true and correct copy of a resolution adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Mountain Brook at its regular meeting held on February 24,2020, as same appears in the minutes 
of record of said meeting. 

City Clerk 

Dunbarton Sidewalk Project Bid Award 



February 18,2020 

TO: Mr. Sam Gaston 
City of Mountain Brook 
56 Church Street 
Mountain Brook, AL 352 1 3 

Two Perimeter Pork South 
Suite 500 East 

Birmingham, Alabama 35243 

Telephone: (205) 940-6420 

m 

SUBJECT: Dunbarton Sidewalk Project 
TAPBH-TA18(931) 
Bid Results 

S A I N  
A S S O C I A T E S  

Dear Mr. Gaston: 

Bids were opened on Friday February 14, 2020 for the Dunbarton Sidewalk Project. There were 10 contractors 
that had requested the bid documents and 4 that submitted bids. The bids and the engineer's cost estimate 
were as follows: 

Bulls Construction $447,377.00 
CBA Construction $482,476.1 9 
Gillespie Construction $507,977.40 
Southeastern Sealcoatinu $379.045.70 
Engineer's Estimate $396,869.05 

southeastern Sealcoating being the apparent low bidder, their bid was reviewed in detail. It was found to be 
complete with all the necessary documentation included. 

The unit prices of all the bids were input into a spreadsheet for analysis and the following points were observed 
about Southeastern's bid: 

1. They put considerably more money in 201A Clearing & Grubbing than the other contractors. This would 
be more of a concern on higher cost project, and if it were a longer scheduled project. However this 
project only being 60 calendar days does not significantly front load the contract relative to the project 
duration, and this should not have a significant impact on the city's cash flow. 

2. The handrail bid item 51 7A was lower at $1 9,200 compared to the other bids that ranged from $28,800 
to $48,000. 1 spoke to David Henderson at Southeastern about this particular item and the city's desire 
for this handrail to be uniform with others that have previously been placed on other projects. He said 
his price was based on a quote from lron Unlimited. I spoke to Harold at lron Unlimited and he assured 
me he had seen the plans and provided his quote accordingly. He was able to describe the fence to 
me, and mentioned he had done work in Mountain Brook before on Euclid and Montevallo Rd. 

3. The sidewalk bid item 618A was $65,880 compared to the other bids that ranged from $93,300 to 
$98,864. Southeastern plans to use a subcontractor Harris Precision Concrete to install the sidewalk and 
other concrete items. This subcontractor from Montevallo was found to not have their own contractor's 

Engineering Better Porfnerships 



Dunbarton Sidewalk Bid 
February 18.2020 

license with the state of Alabama. After speaking with David Henderson, he clarified that this was the 
reformation of Zaragosa & Harris Concrete after Zaragosa has retired. Z & H has been a reputable 
contractor on many ALDOT contracts that is licensed. He expects that Hams is getting their contractor's 
license updated in the new company name. 

Based on the low bid and the other discussion points, I would recommend to Mountain Brook and to ALDOT to 
have this contract be awarded to Southeastern Sealcoating. 

Sincerely, 

SAlN ASSOCIATES, INC. 

Matt Stoops, PE 
Project Manager 

Cc: Sam Jenkins - ALDOT 
Nathan Currie - Sain 



Dunbarton Drive Sidewalk Proiect 
Bid O ~ e n i n ~  Feb 14.2020 

TAPBH-TA18(931) 

Bid Openlng Mlnutes: 

aids were received at 11 am for the Ourbarton Drivesldewalk project and opened In the presence ofthose in attendance as initialed above. The apparent low bldderwas 
SouthEastern Seal Coat . The bids will be reviewed for coremnesr by Sain and dation for award will follow. Citycouncll meetsFeb 24 when we can expect 

approval to enter into contract. 

Signed I ~ek i f ied  

Matt Stoops - Project Engineer, Sain Associates 
Printed NarneIPorition 



CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK 
D u n b a m n  DriveSidewalk Profert 

Unit Price Bid Package 

oincnnrcfrom 

I Englnro'sEnlmat~ I BullsConltrudon I (BA ConmcUon I Glll.lplc Conrtrudon 1 Soulheastern Sealmat Engineer'% Est 

mMoLSCRlmON I ~ ~ a n ~ i v  1 unit ~nicc I con I u n ~ t ~ r ~ c .  I c o n  I unit Prlrr I cost I unit  vim I t o n  I UnilPrice I cost I % 1 I 



C I N  OF MOUNTAIN BROOK 
Dunbarton Drive Sidewalk Project 

Unit Price Bid Package 
b 

) Ensincefs Wmate I BullsConstruction I CBA bnrbudon I G l l l q ~ b  Consmetion ' 15--Sa&&tem Seakoat~ . ,I Engineer's Est 
ITEM DESCR~PT~ON 1 ~ u a w  1 una price I cost I Unit WOE I cost I Untt Prlce I b s t  1' UnkPrka . 1 Cost. I r : ~ n b ~ ~ h ~ 3 l : . ~ - X o s t ~  . . I % I $ 






























































































































































	2020-Feb-24 Agenda
	2. Go Blue proclamation
	3. Arbor Week proclamation
	4. Gloria Repolesk
	5. Minutes
	6. Street light
	7. Dunbarton sidewalk
	   Dunbarton AIA contracts

